

Subsidiary Legislation made under s.5(2).

**Gibraltar National Trails Coordination Board  
Regulations 2021**

**LN.2021/166**

*Commencement*

**4.3.2021**

---

**ARRANGEMENT OF REGULATIONS.**

Regulation

1. Title.
2. Commencement.
3. Constitution of the Coordination B.
4. Duration of membership of the Coordination Board.
5. Meetings and proceedings.

**2021-03**

## Gibraltar National Trails

**2021/166**

### **Gibraltar National Trails Coordination Board Regulations 2021**

---

*In exercise of the powers conferred on him by section 5(2) of the Gibraltar National Trails Act 2021, and all other enabling powers, the Minister with responsibility for the Environment has made the following Regulations–*

#### **Title.**

1. These Regulations may be cited as the Gibraltar National Trails Coordination Board Regulations 2021.

#### **Commencement.**

2. These Regulations come into operation on the day of publication.

#### **Constitution of the Coordination Board.**

3.(1) The members of the Coordination Board shall be appointed by the Minister by notice in the Gazette and one such member shall be appointed as chairperson.

(2) The Coordination Board may, with the approval of the Minister, appoint a secretary, deputy chairperson and such number of other staff as the Minister may determine.

(3) Alternate members may, from time to time, be appointed by the Minister to substitute for any of the members of the Coordination Board and they shall have the same rights and powers as the appointed member which they substitute.

(4) When an appointment is made under subregulation (3), notice of that fact and the duration of the appointment of the alternate member shall be published by the Minister by notice in the Gazette.

#### **Duration of membership of the Coordination Board.**

4.(1) Any member of the Coordination Board shall hold office for a term of three years from the date of appointment, unless that member dies, resigns by notice in writing to the Minister, or is removed from office under subregulation (3).

(2) Any member or alternate member may be reappointed.

(3) The Minister may remove a member of the Coordination Board on the following grounds–

- (a) absence from three consecutive meetings of the Coordination Board without the permission of the chairperson, or other neglect of duty;

- (b) bankruptcy or insolvency;
- (c) conviction of a criminal offence;
- (d) incapacity or inability to perform the duties of the office by reason of illness or otherwise; or
- (e) misconduct.

**Meetings and proceedings.**

5.(1) At all meetings of the Coordination Board, the chairperson shall preside.

(2) Decisions at a meeting of the Coordination Board shall be decided by a majority of the members present and voting at the meeting, and in the case of an equality of votes, the chairperson shall have a second or casting vote.

(3) The Coordination Board shall keep minutes of its proceedings.

(4) If in the opinion of the chairperson, the business before the Coordination Board makes it desirable to do so, any person may be invited to attend and make representations at a meeting of the Coordination Board, but shall not have a right to vote.

(5) The Coordination Board may approve or determine any matter by a resolution in writing signed by all members of the Coordination Board, and such resolution shall be as valid and effective as if passed at a meeting of the Coordination Board.

(6) Subject to the provisions of the Act and these Regulations, the Coordination Board may regulate its own procedure, including its quorum.